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PLEA AGREEMENT

The following plea agreement is entered into by and between
the United States Attorney for the Middle District of
Pennsylvania and the above-captioned defendant. Any reference to
the United States or to the Government in this Agreement shall
mean the office of the United States Attorney for the Middle
District of Pennsylvania.

The defendant and counsel for both parties agree that the
United States Sentencing Commission Guidelines which took effect

on November 1, 1987, as amended and interpreted by United States

v. Booker, 125 S. Ct. 738 (2005), will apply to the offenses to
which the defendant is pleading guilty.

1. Waiver of Indictment/Plea of Guilty. The defendant

agrees to weive indictment by a grand jury and plead guilty to a
felony information which will be filed against the defendant by
the United States Attorney for the Middle District of

Pennsylvania. That information will charge the defendant with a

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341, mail



fraud. The maximum penalty for that offense is imprisonment for
a period of 30 years, a fine of $1,000,000 a maximum term of
supervised release of up to vyears, to be determined by the
court, which shall be served at the conclusion of and in addition
to any term of imprisonment, the costs of prosecution, denial of
certain federal benefits as well as an assessment in the amount
of $100.00. At the time the guilty plea is entered, the
defendant shall admit to the Court that the defendant is, in
fact, guilty of the offense charged in the information. The
defendant further agrees that any legal and factual issues
relating to the application of the Federal Sentencing Guidelines
to the defendant’s conduct, including facts that support any
specific offense characteristic or other enhancement or
adjustment and the appropriate sentence within the statutory
maximums provided for by law, will be determined by the court at
a sentencing hearing. In the event that the defendant
subsequently successfully vacates or sets aside any plea,
conviction or sentence imposed pursuant to this plea agreement,
the defendant further agrees to waive any defense to the filing
of additional charges which could have beer brought against the
defendant at the time of this plea based upon laches, the
assertion of any speedy trial rights, any applicable statute of
limitations, or any other grounds.

2. Supervised Release. The defendant also understands that




the Court must impose a term of supervised release following any
sentence of imprisonment exceeding one (1) year, or when
required by statute. The Court may require a term of supervised
release in any other case.

3. Maximum Sentence. The defendant understands that the

total, maximum possible sentence for all charges is the
combination of penalties described above; that is 30 years in
prison and/or fines totaling $1,000,000.00, a term of supervised
release to be determined by the Court of up to 5 years, the costs
of prosecution, denial of certain federal benefits and an
assessment totaling $100.00.

4. Fine. The defendant understands that the Court may
impose a fine pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984. The
willful failure to pay any fine imposed by the Court, in full,
may be considered a breach of this plea agreement. Further, the
defendant acknowledges that willful failure to pay the fine may

subject the defendant to additional criminal violations and civil

penalties pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 3611,
et seq.

5. Alternative Fine. The defendant understands that under

the alternative fine section of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 3571, the maximum fine quoted above may be increased if
the District Court finds that any person derived pecuniary gain

or suffered pecuniary loss from the offense and that the maximum



fine to be imposed, if the Court elects to proceed in this
fashion, cculd be twice the amount of the gross gain or twice the
amount of the gross loss resulting from the offense.

6. Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. If the Court

awards a fine or restitution as part of the defendant's sentence,
and the sentence includes a term of imprisonment, the defendant
agrees to voluntarily enter the United States Bureau of Prisons-
administered program known as the Inmate Financial Responsibility
Program through which the Bureau of Prisons will collect up to
50% of the defendant's prison salary and apply those amounts on
the defendant's behalf to the payment of the outstanding fine and
restitution orders.

7. Special Assessment. The defendant understands that the

Court will impose a special assessment of $100.00 pursuant to the
provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 3013. No
later than the date of sentencing, the defendant or defendant's

counsel shall mail a check in payment of the special assessment

directly to the Clerk, United States District Court Middle
District of Pennsylvania. This check should be made payable to
“Clerk, United States District Court”. Counsel for the defendant
shall provide a copy of the special assessment check or a Clerk’s
receipt to the United States Attorney’s Office for the Middle
District of Pennsylvania at the time of sentencing certifying

compliance with this provision of the plea agreement. If the



defendant intentionally fails to make this payment, pays with an
insufficient funds check, or otherwise fails to comply with any
of the requirements of the United States Attorney’s Office’s
Financial Litigation Unit regarding the special assessment, it is
understood that this failure may be treated as a breach of this
plea agreement and may result in further prosecution or the
filing of additional criminal charges, or a contempt citation.

8. Financial Litigation Unit Investigation. The defendant

agrees, as a part of this agreement, to submit to interviews by
the United States Attorney’s Office's Financial Litigation Unit
regarding the defendant's financial status. As part of this
process, the defendant, whether represented by counsel or not,
consents to contact by and communication with the Financial
Litigation Unit, and regarding representation by undersigned
counsel, the defendant and counsel consent to contact by and
communication with the Financial Litigation Unit and agree to

waive any prohibition against communication with a represented

party by the United States Attorney’s Office regarding
defendant’s financial status. Pursuant to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 3664 (d) (3) the defendant also agrees to
complete the required financial affidavit, fully describing the
defendant’s financial resources within 10 days of the guilty
plea. The defendant will submit the original affidavit, on forms

prescribed by the probation office, to the U.S. Probation Office



with a copy to the United States Attorney’s office.

9. No Further Prosecution, Except Tax Charges. The United

States Attcrney's Office for the Middle District of Pennsylvania
agrees that it will not bring any other criminal charges against
the defendant directly arising out of the defendant's involvement
in the offense described above. However, nothing in this
agreement will limit prosecution for criminal tax charges, if
any, arising out of those offenses.

10. Acceptance of Responsibility. Counsel for the

defendant has affirmatively indicated to the United States
Attorney's Office that the defendant not only wishes to enter a
plea of guilty, but will clearly demonstrate a recognition and
affirmative acceptance of responsibility as required by the
sentencing guidelines. Additionally, the defendant has assisted
authorities in the investigation and prosecution of his own
misconduct by timely notifying authorities of his intention to
enter a plea of guilty, thereby permitting the government to
avoid preparing for trial and permitting the government and the
court to allocate its resources efficiently. Accordingly, if the
defendant’s offense level is 16 or greater as determined by
application of the advisory United States Sentencing Commission
Guidelines, and if the defendant can adequately demonstrate this
acceptance of responsibility to the government, the United States

Attorney's Office will move at sentencing that the defendant



receive a three-level reduction in the defendant's offense level
for accepteance of responsibility. If the defendant’s offense
level is less than 16 as determined by application of the
advisory United States Sentencing Commission Guidelines, and if
the defendant can adequately demonstrate this acceptance of
responsibility to the government, the United States Attorney's
Office will move at sentencing that the defendant receive a two-
level reduction in the defendant's offense level for acceptance
of responsibility. The failure of the Court to find that the
defendant is entitled to a reduction for acceptance of
responsibility shall not be a basis to void this plea agreement.

11. Appropriate Sentence Recommendation. At the time of

sentencing, the United States may make a recommendation that it
considers appropriate based upon the nature and circumstances of
the case and the defendant's participation in the offense, and
specifically reserves the right to recommend a sentence up to and

including the maximum sentence of imprisonment and fine
allowable, together with the cost of prosecution.

12. Specific Sentencing Guidelines Recommendations. With

respect to the application of the United States Sentencing
Commission Sentencing Guidelines to the defendant's conduct, the
parties agree as follows:
(a) pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 2B.1l(a) (l), the defendant’s
base offense level is 7 since the offense of conviction

has a statutory maximum term of imprisonment of 20
years or more;






